
 

 

 

Children, Young People and 
Family Support Scrutiny and 
Policy Development Committee 
(Special Meeting) 
 

 
Wednesday 9 March 2016 at 10.00 am 
 
To be held at The Showroom 
Workstations, 15 Paternoster Row, 
Sheffield, S1 2BX 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Chris Rosling-Josephs (Chair), Nasima Akther, John Booker, 
Katie Condliffe, Sheila Constance, Aodan Marken, Mohammad Maroof, 
Karen McGowan, Pat Midgley, Chris Peace, Lynn Rooney, Colin Ross, 
Ian Saunders, Jack Scott and Cliff Woodcraft (Deputy Chair) 
 
Education Non-Council Members 
Gillian Foster, Jules Jones, Joan Stratford and Alison Warner 
 
Healthwatch Sheffield 
Alice Riddell (Observer) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

Substitute Members 
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the 
above Committee Members as and when required. 
 

  

 
 



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Children, Young People and Family Support Scrutiny Committee exercises an 
overview and scrutiny function in respect of the planning, policy development and 
monitoring of service performance and other general issues relating to learning and 
attainment and the care of children and young people within the Children’s Services 
area of Council activity.  It also scrutinises as appropriate the various local Health 
Services functions, with particular reference to those relating to the care of children. 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm.  You may not be allowed to see some reports because they 
contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Scrutiny 
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  
Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information 
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Scrutiny Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave.  Any private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the 
meeting please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to 
the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information about this Scrutiny Committee, please 
contact Diane Owens, Policy and Improvement Officer on 0114 27 35065 or email 
diane.owens@sheffield.gov.uk 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND FAMILY SUPPORT SCRUTINY AND POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA 

9 MARCH 2016 
 

Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
   
2. Apologies for Absence  
   
3. Exclusion of Public and Press  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to 

exclude the press and public 
 

 

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business 

to be considered at the meeting 
 

 

5. Public Questions and Petitions  
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the 

public 
 

 

6. Call-in of the Cabinet Decision on School Places in 
Sheffield 

(Pages 5 - 30) 

 Report of the Policy and Improvement Officer 
 

 

7. Date of Next Meeting  
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on Monday, 

14th March, 2016, at 1.00 pm, in the Town Hall 
 

 



 1

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 2

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
Subject: Call in of decision on “School Places in Sheffield”    
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Diane Owens, Policy &Improvement Officer 

0114 2735065, diane.owens@sheffield.gov.uk  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  
 

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Community Assembly request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision  X 

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee  

Other  

 
 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 On the 17th February 2016 Cabinet took the following decision, to: 
 
Authorise the Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children's Services and Lifelong Learning, 
and where necessary in consultation with the Executive Director, Place to take all 
necessary steps, including bringing forward the necessary capital approval 
submissions to Cabinet, to: 
  

i. Commission a new 11-18 school on the car park area of the former 
Bannerdale site as described in this report. 

ii. Support the temporary expansion of Silverdale to provide an additional 60 
secondary school places in 2016/17 and 2017/18 as set out in this report. 

iii. Undertake a 4-week consultation on a proposal to expand Ecclesall Infant 
School to become a through primary school offering 90 places per year as set 
out in this report. 

iv. Commission a new 2-18 school on the former Pye Bank School site as 
described in this report. 

 

Report to Children, Young People & 
Families Scrutiny & Policy Development 

Committee Wednesday 9
th

 March 2016 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



 
1.2 The original report is attached as Appendix A & B. 
 
1.3 As per Part 4, section 16 of Sheffield City Council’s Constitution, this decision 

has been called in, preventing implementation of the decision until it has been 
considered by this Scrutiny Committee. 

 
1.4 The Call-In notice is attached at appendix C, stating that the reason for the call-in 

is “to scrutinise the decision to ensure that the proposal provides the best 
allocation of school places”.  

 
2.0 The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 
As per the Scrutiny Procedure rules, scrutinise the decision and take one of the 
following courses of action: 

 
(a) refer the decision back to the decision making body or individual for 

reconsideration in the light of recommendations from the Committee; 
 
(b) request that the decision be deferred until the Scrutiny Committee has 

considered relevant issues and made recommendations to the 
Executive; 

 
(c) take no action in relation to the called-in decision but consider whether 

issues arising from the call-in need to be fed back to the decision 
maker or added to the work programme of an existing Scrutiny 
Committee; 

 
(d)  if, but only if (having taken the advice of the Monitoring Officer and/or 

the Chief Finance Officer), the Committee determines that the decision 
is wholly or partly outside the Budget and Policy Framework, refer the 
matter, with any recommendations, to the Council after following the 
procedures in the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 

 
(If a Scrutiny Committee decides on (a), (b) or (d) as its course of action, there 
is a continuing bar on implementing the decision). 

 
2.2 The Scrutiny Procedure rules state that if a decision is referred back, it is 

referred back to the individual or body that made the decision. In this case the 
decision maker is Cabinet.  

 
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers 
 

• Appendix A & B - Cabinet Report: School Places in Sheffield and Appendix B 
Proposals & options 

• Appendix C – call in notice  
 
Category of Report:  OPEN  

Page 6



Form 2 – Executive Report                                                         February 2016 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of:   Jayne Ludlam 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    17th February 2016 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   School Places in Sheffield 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Alena Prentice (ext. 53418) 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Key Decision:  YES 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reason Key Decision: Expenditure/savings over £500,000 
 

    Affects 2 or more wards 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: This report makes recommendations on the next steps in meeting the 
pressing need for new primary and secondary school places in the north east 
and the south west of the city following public consultation. It includes a summary 
of the response to consultation, an appraisal of the options, and proposals for the 
next stage. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations: The proposals put forward in this report 
represent the best outcomes when balancing the various priorities including: 
ensuring access to great, inclusive schools in every area of the city, getting value 
for money, protecting green spaces, and meeting housing needs. This has been 
thoroughly tested through the consultation and the process of appraising the 
various options since the consultation. 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Cabinet Report 
 

Page 7



Page 2 of 19 

Recommendations: 
 
Authorise the Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children's Services and Lifelong 
Learning, and where necessary in consultation with the Executive Director, Place 
to, take all necessary steps, including bringing forward the necessary capital 
approval submissions to Cabinet, to: 
  

i. Commission a new 11-18 school on the car park area of the former 
Bannerdale site as described in this report. 

ii. Support the temporary expansion of Silverdale to provide an additional 60 
secondary school places in 2016/17 and 2017/18 as set out in this report. 

iii. Undertake a 4-week consultation on a proposal to expand Ecclesall Infant 
School to become a through primary school offering 90 places per year as 
set out in this report. 

iv. Commission a new 2-18 school on the former Pye Bank School site as 
described in this report. 

 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN  
 

  

Page 8



Page 3 of 19 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Dave Phillips 
 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Nadine Wynter 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Human Rights Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Economic Impact 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Community Safety Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Property Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Simon Green 
 

Area(s) Affected 
 

All 
 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead 
 

Cllr Jackie Drayton 
 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee 
 

Children & Young People 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    
 

NO 
 

Press Release 
 

YES 
 

Page 9



Page 4 of 19 

REPORT TO THE CABINET 
 
SCHOOL PLACES IN SHEFFIELD 
 
1.0 SUMMARY 
  
1.1 This report makes recommendations on the next steps in meeting the pressing 

need for new primary and secondary school places in the north east and the 
south west of the city following public consultation. It includes a summary of the 
response to consultation, an appraisal of the options, and proposals for the next 
stage. 

  
2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 
  
2.1 The decisions contained within this report are essential in ensuring that there 

are enough school places for every school age child in Sheffield. This is a 
fundamental statutory responsibility of local government and it is essential to 
Sheffield City Council’s focus on enabling children to have a great start in life, 
achieve their full potential, and contribute to the success of the city. At the heart 
of the vision for increasing school places in Sheffield is the Council’s role in 
enabling excellent education outcomes and equitable access for all to high 
quality education. 

  
3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 
  
3.1 The outcome would be a programme to ensure that there are enough primary 

and secondary school places to meet population demand in 2016 and beyond in 
areas where there has been sustained increases in the pupil population over a 
long period. This includes an assessment of whether the solutions are 
sustainable in the long term (including the impact on the sustainability of other 
schools in the city) and their fit with the Council’s strategic objectives around 
education, value for money, housing, green space, alleviating congestion, and 
considering air quality. 

  
4.0 CONTEXT 
  
4.1 The cabinet received a report on 22 July 2015 which set out an outline 

programme for the provision of primary and secondary places in two key areas 
of need: the north east and south west of the city. The cabinet agreed that 
consultation should be undertaken on a range of proposals to meet the need for 
places. This consultation has been carried out and the results are reported 
below. 

  
The Strategy 
 

4.2 The Council’s published vision is for all Sheffield families to have access to 
great, inclusive schools in every area of the city. This means schools working in 
partnership to ensure each child reaches their potential, equal access for the 
most vulnerable children to high quality education, schools at the heart of their 
communities, and getting best value from all funding opportunities. This must be 
delivered through each project brought forward under this programme. 

Page 10



Page 5 of 19 

  
4.3 The starting point for the strategy is to provide sufficient places in areas of major 

population growth. The strategy must acknowledge the strong expectation that 
parents will be able to gain a place for their child at a good local school and be 
founded on a strong vision of excellence that will support and encourage the 
aspiration of parents. 

  
The Need for Places 
 

4.4 It is important to emphasize the scale of the population growth that the Council 
is seeking to respond to through these proposals for increasing school places. 
Births in Sheffield have risen by 25% since 2002 with 1000 more children per 
year now coming into Reception. The children born in 2012 are the largest birth 
cohort in the city since 1991. A small reduction of 5% in 2013 has been followed 
by a levelling off in 2014 and 2015. Throughout this period of growth, places 
have been added in the areas of pressure. As a result of this work we have been 
able to retain a very high proportion of families being offered a place at a 
preferred school – 97% in 2015/16.   

  
4.5 The most recent birth cohorts will come through into Year 7 in the middle of the 

next decade and we can be confident in the need for places at a city level over 
this period. Longer term is more difficult to predict. The 2013-15 birth pattern 
could be seen as a sign of stabilisation and Office for National Statistics’ 
projections show a steady increase in births until 2023. Historically the pattern of 
crests and troughs in birth numbers continues a picture seen since the post-war 
baby boomer generation. It is possible that births could reduce in the future, 
consistent with the fall and rise pattern seen in previous decades. However, it is 
important to be aware that births are only one driver of demand for school 
places, particularly when looking at smaller local areas. Both the southwest and 
northeast have an established pattern of young families moving in, which add to 
existing high levels of demand. If these established patterns of migration 
continue then school places will continue to be needed most in the areas 
identified in this report. 

  
Timescale and Decision-Making 
 

4.6 As outlined prior to the consultation, decisions are required in the next period to 
ensure that the places need is met. In the north east, primary places remain 
under pressure and places will be required from 2017 onwards.  In the south 
west a long-term solution to the primary places need is required from 2017 
onwards, following temporary agreements in 2015 at Dobcroft and now for 2016 
at Ecclesall. In secondary the growth follows a similar pattern across the two 
areas, with temporary provision needed in the run up to the most significant 
growth in 2018 and 2019 and beyond. 

  
5.0 CONSULTATION PROCESS 
  
5.1 A six-week consultation was carried out from 5 October to 20 November in line 

with statutory requirements for school organisation proposals.  This was 
extended by a further week to allow all parties to submit their responses and, in 
particular, to comment on the alternative options that had been put forward 

Page 11



Page 6 of 19 

during the consultation. The response was extensive and the Council was 
grateful to the many respondents who were involved in the consultation process, 
offering detailed views and putting forward alternative proposals. 

  
5.2 The consultation process offered opportunities for all those affected by the 

proposals to comment and feedback in ways that suited them.  Ten workshops 
were held at a range of venues and different times of day and all were well 
attended.  The main themes of the discussion were captured at each event.  The 
majority of those who participated in the workshops were parents from the south 
west area.  In order to ensure that parents in the north east were involved, 
officers arranged a number of coffee morning sessions in Pye Bank and Byron 
Wood Primary Schools so that parents there would have the opportunity to 
respond to the school proposals for their area. A meeting of the Local Area 
Partnership also considered the proposals.  Officers also attended community 
group meetings and a number of parent meetings arranged by governors, 
including several at Holt House Infant and Carterknowle Junior School, along 
with a well-attended meeting arranged by parent governors of Sharrow, Nether 
Edge, Lowfield and Porter Croft Primary schools.   

  
5.3 Consultees could also fill in an online survey, submit comments via a web-form, 

or simply e-mail to the consultation inbox.  Many also e-mailed the Executive 
Director for Children Young People and Families, Jayne Ludlam, MPs, the 
Cabinet Member, Jackie Drayton, the Council Leader, Julie Dore, and other 
Cabinet and Ward Members. These emails were all included alongside other 
responses to the consultation. 

  
5.4 In the second half of the consultation, the Council sought to acknowledge and 

seek comments on the variety of alternative options put forward by consultees 
and the Council.  A further survey about these options was made available on 
11th November and one of the main reasons for the consultation extension was 
to allow sufficient time for participants to fill this survey in.  When people 
submitted a specific, detailed alternative plan, it was shared via the Council 
website. 

  
5.5 There was a high level of engagement with the consultation from governors, 

school staff, parents and local residents.  Overall 1400 responses were 
received, which is one of the largest ever responses the Council has had about 
a schools issue.  Responses received via each of the consultation routes were 
as follows: 
 

Type of 
response* 

 No received 

Online survey 
responses 

Comments on specific proposals 
(original survey) 

294 

Statistical responses (new survey) 306 

Web forms 
and email 
responses 

Sent directly to in-box and sent on 
from other recipients (see 5.3 above) 

224 

 

Workshop 
feedback 

Post-its – first half consultation 
(original proposals) 

3 workshops, 150 
attendees 

Post-its – second half consultation 6 workshops, 200+ 

Page 12



Page 7 of 19 

(new options) attendees 

Feedback forms – general comments 
handwritten 

75 

Feedback forms – new options 
handwritten 
 

 

10 

Community 
meetings 

Carterknowle public meeting, NE 
Local Area Partnership, Sharrow 
school area meeting (interpreters), 
Carterknowle Millhouses Group, 
Bannerdale site meeting with 
stakeholders, school coffee mornings 

140+ attendees 

Alternative 
plans/ 
submissions 

Site plans/proposals submitted as 
consultation responses 

5 

Petition(s) 900 signatures  2 
 

  
The Proposals for Consultation 
 

5.6 The Council opened the consultation on 5 October setting out the proposals that 
were endorsed in the Cabinet paper of 22 July in a consultation document 
published on the Council’s web page. The proposals were considered against 
the impact on children’s outcomes, equality and the needs of the most 
vulnerable, meeting the need for places, value for money, and the impact on the 
community including traffic and air quality. The proposals were as follows: 
 

North East area 
 

A new secondary school on the former Pye Bank site 

Create new primary places by expanding a local primary school, 
building a new standalone primary school, or a primary phase of the 
secondary school 

 

South West area 
 

A newly built secondary school co-located with a merged Holt House 
and Carterknowle Primary in new or extended buildings on the Holt 
House site 

An expansion of Silverdale secondary 

A permanent expansion of Ecclesall Infant School and enlargement 
of Clifford Infant into a through primary by relocating to the 
Carterknowle Junior site 

 

  
5.7 In the first three weeks of the consultation process there was a very good 

response to the consultation with many detailed and thorough responses. There 
were several clear messages coming through about the original proposals, in 
particular strong concerns around the site/location of primary and secondary 
provision on the Holt House site and opposition to Clifford moving away from 
Psalter Lane. 

Page 13



Page 8 of 19 

  
5.8 The Council considered this initial response and, in the week commencing 2 

November, which was the start of the second half of the consultation, the 
Council announced that it would be prepared to reconsider the use of the 
Bannerdale Centre footprint site as a location for a new school, and also asked 
people involved in the consultation to consider a 3-18 through school as a 
possible model for the new school.  The Council also reiterated that it was 
important to achieve all of its corporate priorities in the way that the Bannerdale 
site would be developed, including the development of housing, retention and 
enhancement of the green space, and consideration of traffic and air quality 
issues, alongside the development of a new school. 

  
5.9 In order to be responsive to the feedback in the consultation, the main 

alternative options that had been put forward were acknowledged and listed on 
the Council’s website (see appendix 1).  Views on these alternatives were then 
sought through the consultation workshops and subsequently through an online 
survey made available through the Council’s website. 

  
6.0 SUMMARY OF RESPONSES TO THE PROPOSALS AND OPTIONS 
  

North East Proposals 
 

6.1 Through the feedback from parents/carers and members of the community in 
the North East it was clear that the need for more school places was supported 
and that a new school would be a highly positive outcome for the area.  The 
emphasis was on the importance of establishing an outstanding school offering 
high quality teaching and learning and of finding a sponsor who would 
understand and meet the needs of a very diverse community.  There were no 
strong views expressed about how to provide the necessary primary places.  
The possibility of a primary phase for the new secondary school was discussed 
at the meetings and the benefits for children and families of receiving a through 
primary and secondary education under one sponsor and leadership team were 
endorsed, with some parents keen to stress the importance of appropriate 
separation between younger and older children.  It was recognised that the 
choice of the Pye Bank site would present an opportunity for regeneration and 
enhancement of local community facilities, but it was also stressed that the 
preservation and enhancement of existing recreation space, particularly the 
Nottingham Cliff Recreation Ground was important to the community. 

  
South West Proposals 
 

6.2 The reaction to the Council’s initial proposals for the location of a secondary 
school on the Holt House Infant site, alongside a merged and rebuilt Holt House 
Infant and Carterknowle Junior met with strong resistance from parents and 
members of the community.  Many were concerned about the proximity of 
primary and secondary education on a constrained site; others put forward the 
case that a new school under these circumstances would not be competitive 
with existing successful local schools.  The main alternative cited was to position 
the new secondary somewhere on the Bannerdale site, possibly in the area of 
the former footprint of the Bannerdale Centre which had been earmarked for 
housing.  The other secondary proposal, an expansion of Silverdale, was largely 

Page 14



Page 9 of 19 

met positively, recognising the benefits of expanding an outstanding local 
school.  However, some contested that Silverdale was the right location for this 
expansion given that it was King Ecgbert or High Storrs that was more likely to 
be oversubscribed from their catchment areas.  There was also debate about 
the overall number of secondary places needed to serve the area and whether it 
would be better to provide all the extra capacity needed in the new school and 
avoid permanent expansion of one of the existing schools. 

  
6.3 In terms of the proposals for primary places, the expansion of Ecclesall Infant 

school was positively supported in the consultation, although there were some 
emerging concerns about the potential impact for traffic and parking in the area 
if there were more children on the Ecclesall Infant site.  The Diocese and 
Governing Body of Clifford Infant firmly rejected the proposal of a move to 
Carterknowle Junior site and presented their preferred alternative of purchasing 
the property adjacent to the school on Psalter Lane and adapting it to provide 
the junior phase space. 

  
Alternative options for the South West 
 

6.4 A number of alternative options were raised by participants in the consultation.  
The Council was keen to note and acknowledge these alternatives, and in the 
second half of the consultation, offered opportunities for comment on them both 
at the workshops and through an online survey. 

  
6.5 The main alternative to the proposed location of a new secondary school on the 

Holt House site was to use part of the Bannerdale site.  Most respondents 
thought this was a better location for a new school so as to have a larger, 
prominent site with access to green space.  Amongst those who wanted to see a 
successful new school established, this was seen as the best way to ensure that 
it could be established to be competitive with the other highly popular and 
performing south west schools.  However, there were also concerns about: 
whether the Bannerdale site could accommodate both housing development and 
a new school; about preserving access to green space for the community; and a 
possible increase in traffic and reduction in air quality on adjacent roads. 

  
6.6 The Council was keen to seek views on the option of a 3-18 through school 

model for the new school on the Bannerdale site and put this forward as its own 
alternative option in the second part of the consultation.  The Council continues 
to be supportive of the educational benefits for children of all through provision 
and published evidence in support of this proposal.  However, the feedback on 
this alternative was universally not supportive.  Again it was pointed out that 
parents did not wish to see close proximity of primary and secondary pupils, and 
that the replacement of Holt House Infant and Carterknowle Junior by a primary 
phase of a through school would sever all links with those existing schools and 
effectively close and replace an outstanding infant school. 

  
6.7 There were a considerable number of parents who were worried about the 

prospect of a new school, that it could not be as good as the existing schools 
and that it would be better to expand those schools. One way suggested was to 
use a new site as an annex to create an expanded, split site school with an 
upper and lower site.  

Page 15



Page 10 of 19 

  
6.8 The feedback from parents about the proposals for Holt House and 

Carterknowle revealed that many parents with children at the Junior school hold 
the Carterknowle building in high esteem and therefore did not support 
relocating from the site.  Neither was there strong support for extra buildings on 
the Holt House Infant site, which is considered to provide a precious open green 
space environment for the younger children.  Local residents too were worried 
about the prospect of more pupils on the Holt House Infant site, the impact on 
air quality and traffic of increased car journeys to the site and of having more 
children on the site close to the junction with Abbeydale Road.  An arrangement 
of joint governance and leadership for the two schools was supported by both 
governing bodies and by the majority of parents.  The option of doing so on 
separate sites was also put forward. 

  
6.9 The main response from Clifford school and parents was opposition to relocation 

away from Psalter Lane. The Clifford Governing Body and the Diocese of 
Sheffield made the argument that moving from Psalter Lane would sever the 
school’s current links with their community and their linked Church, St Andrews. 
This position was supported by parents. The alternative put forward was for the 
school to remain on the Psalter Lane site and to purchase the adjacent property 
for adaptation as space to accommodate a junior phase.  A further alternative 
was also put forward which would mean enlarging Ecclesall Infant School to 
become a through primary and to continue to use Ecclesall Junior as the junior 
phase for Clifford.  This was the preferred option of the Ecclesall Infant and 
Junior Governing Body.  The option of building a new stand-alone primary 
school was not strongly supported and is actually limited by the fact that there 
are no available sites in the locality. 

  
Other Main Themes 
 

6.10 A key issue that arose in relation to the provision of a new school in the south 
west was the issue of catchment areas.  Understandably, there was much 
anxiety from parents about whether a catchment area created for the new 
school would include areas already feeding to the existing schools in the area.  
This stemmed from worries about whether a new school would be competitive 
with the existing schools with established track records which are already highly 
popular with parents.  For many parents there is a strong link between 
catchment areas and where they have chosen to live, and the prospect of this 
changing is unsettling. 

  
6.11 Parents were given assurances throughout the consultation that there was no 

preconceived plan for a change to admissions arrangements.  Only once a 
sponsor is on board and a vision for a new school established would options be 
drawn up for the admissions arrangements for the new school.  Furthermore, 
these would be subject to a full consultation before any final decision.  The 
timescale for a consultation on admissions arrangements would be Autumn 
Term 2016 for a new school opening in September 2018. 

  
6.12 The other main theme to note in the consultation feedback was the high 

numbers of responses about traffic congestion and air quality.  These 
particularly related to the impact of development on the Bannerdale and Holt 

Page 16



Page 11 of 19 

House sites including both housing and school development, but latterly also to 
the Ecclesall Infant site once local residents became aware of the possibility of 
the number of children on the site increasing.  Were the proposals to go ahead, 
these specific issues about the impact of development would be addressed 
during the planning stages and would be subject to their own statutory 
consultations.  However, due to the level of sensitivity, particularly around the 
development of the Bannerdale site, an initial assessment of traffic and air 
quality has been commissioned early following the concerns raised during 
consultation.  This will include analysis of the potential impact of the proposals, 
and details of indicative mitigation measures.  Consultation feedback relating to 
these issues will continue to be fed into the design work as it develops to help 
secure building and site proposals that seek to address local needs. 

  
7.0 OPTIONS APPRAISAL 
  
7.1 Following the consultation, work was undertaken to draw together all of the 

consultation responses so as to ensure that all feedback could be taken into 
account.  This included both the original proposals and the alternative options 
that arose during the consultation.  The Cabinet Member e-mailed all fellow 
members of the cabinet to inform them that a file had been collated with every 
response in full. This was made available to Cabinet Members from December 
2015 onwards in order to ensure the every response has featured at the heart of 
the Council’s decision making. 

  
7.2 The analysis of each option considered all of the key priorities outlined 

throughout the consultation.  These were the Council’s commitment to creating 
excellent new local schools that parents want their children to go to, while also 
meeting its responsibilities around value for money, affordable housing, 
maintained green spaces and addressing traffic congestion and air pollution, 
within timescales and capital availability. A recommendation for primary and 
secondary places in the north east and south west areas is set out below 
alongside a rationale for the recommendation and any further process required. 

  
Secondary and primary in the North East 
 

7.3 The feedback from the consultation acknowledged that there was a need for 
more school places in the north east at both primary and secondary level.  There 
was broad support for providing a new secondary school in answer to the need, 
with a post-16 offer.  Options for additional primary school places were 
discussed and the response was generally positive about the option of a primary 
phase of a new school and the opportunity this would provide for continuity of 
education and links between families, the community and the school.  Parents 
were keen to emphasise the importance of strong educational leadership, 
facilities and high quality teaching and learning in the classroom.  It was seen as 
critical that a new school should meet the high aspirations parents in the area 
have for an excellent quality of education. One important element in sustaining 
success for the long-term would be that any new school undertakes proactive 
engagement with the local community and understands the different cultures 
and needs of its pupils and families.  The regeneration of the former Pye Bank 
school building was seen as a benefit to the area, with some keen to maximise 
the potential benefits to local recreation facilities through a new school in this 

Page 17



Page 12 of 19 

area. 
  
7.4 In line with the local response, the recommendation through this report is 

therefore to commission a new 2-18 school to serve this area of the city through 
the refurbishment and extension of the former Pye Bank school building. The 
school would have a minimum of 210 primary school places and 750 secondary 
school places, alongside a post-16 offer (that may be provided on a separate 
site once further design has been undertaken). It would open in September 
2018. As with all new schools, the design of the building would seek to be 
flexible to allow for future expansion to meet a demographic need if required. 

  
7.5 Through the commissioning process the Council is committed to securing the 

best sponsor to meet the local aspiration for an outstanding local school.  The 
buildings and design would be commissioned by the Council and it remains vital 
that this makes a success of the location in terms of an outstanding school 
facility that supports and enhances recreation space for the local community. 
And finally, the Council, the new school sponsor, and local stakeholders, would 
need to work together to develop proposals for a new catchment area that 
supports access to high quality places and equity with the existing local 
secondary schools. 

  
7.6 Through these proposals and further work the Council is confident it can secure 

the vision for a new secondary in the north east that meets high local aspirations 
and provides a positive local development for the area. Further work would need 
to be undertaken to assess primary places demand and options for short-term 
expansion ahead of a new school opening. 

  
Secondary in the South West 
 

7.7 The need for places at secondary level in this area was largely understood and 
endorsed during the consultation.  The response to consultation was extensive, 
mainly focussed on the new school proposal, and no single solution was 
universally supported. Many people saw that a new secondary school with a 
strong local reputation, equal to the existing local schools, would be a positive 
for the area and part of the consultation focussed on the elements that would be 
needed to secure that vision. One important element in sustaining this for the 
long-term would be that any new school has an intake and pupil body that truly 
reflects the local community and replicates the track-record and reputation for 
quality of the existing neighbouring schools.  The key issues are therefore 
around the confidence of parents in the school in terms of leadership and 
ultimately performance alongside the extent to which the buildings, site and 
facilities are attractive and match the existing schools. Understandably there 
were also many local concerns around traffic, access, pollution and the impact 
on local residents. It is not clear that any of the alternative options for providing 
school places in the proposed location or elsewhere would serve to reduce 
overall journeys across the area or have a significantly lower impact. 

  
7.8 
 

In line with the views of many respondents, the recommendation through this 
report is therefore to commission a new 11-18 school to serve this area, away 
from the existing primary schools. This would be achieved through the 
development of school buildings on the former Bannerdale car park area and 

Page 18



Page 13 of 19 

enhancements to the surrounding green space. The school would have 900 
secondary school places initially, alongside a post-16 offer.  The design of the 
building would be flexible to allow for future expansion to 1200 11-16 places if 
required by future growth in numbers of pupils in the area.  It would open in 
September 2018.   

  
7.9 There are then a number of elements of the proposal that need to come together 

prior to opening that work to ensure the success of a new school. The buildings 
and design would be commissioned by the Council and it remains vital that this 
makes a success of the location in terms of an outstanding school facility that 
supports and enhances local green and recreation space for the local 
community. And finally, the Council, the new school sponsor, and local 
stakeholders would need to work together to develop proposals for a new 
catchment area that supports access to high quality places and equity with the 
existing local secondary schools. 

  
7.10 In view of the risks that were highlighted during the consultation about starting a 

new school in an area already served by successful and popular schools, there 
is a need to ensure that the new school can attract a strong initial intake of 
pupils.  This is key to a successful start, and to enabling the school to develop a 
stable and equitable base from which to grow.  The recommendation is therefore 
to proceed with the temporary increase of places at Silverdale for 2016 and 
2017 to provide the places needed across the area in those years, with a further 
review of the permanent increase of places.  This will also allow time for the 
sponsor of the new school to be identified, and for that to be considered as part 
of the pattern of provision across the area. 

  
7.11 A number of people asked whether it was viable to expand the local schools to 

meet the long term need. We need to provide around 240 extra secondary 
places per year by 2020, with the potential for further growth into the next 
decade.  Providing 180 places at the new school in 2018, with potential for 
future expansion is the best way to secure the new school’s intake from 
opening, whilst retaining the flexibility to meet later growth in the right location at 
the right time. The alternative of expanding all schools to the limits of site 
capacity or desirability would not leave the flexibility to expand further in the 
future. It would also mean that any future deficit could not be met by a new 
school. This is because any shortfall that remained once all existing schools 
have been expanded is very unlikely to be big enough to allow a viable new 
school to be developed.  Expansion is also dependent on individual schools and 
academies agreeing to increase their intake and the council cannot be confident 
that this would be the case in the future. 

  
7.12 Through these proposals and further work the Council is confident it can secure 

the vision for a new secondary in the southwest that has the confidence of local 
families and provides a positive local development for the area.  

  
Primary in the South West 
 

7.13 It is clear that 30 more primary school places are needed to serve the area 
broadly defined by the catchment areas of Ecclesall, Dobcroft and Greystones.  
The consultation feedback continued to confirm Ecclesall Infants as the 

Page 19



Page 14 of 19 

preferred location for extra places to meet this growth. The feedback from 
Clifford Infants was clearly against any move away from Psalter Lane. 

  
7.14 One option that was put forward to achieve the extra places in Ecclesall was to 

by create a through primary school of 90 places per year on the Ecclesall Infant 
site.  The governing bodies of both Ecclesall Infant School and Ecclesall CE 
Junior School favour this option because of the educational continuity it would 
provide with a single staff team in one set of buildings. 

  
7.15 Having listened carefully to the many responses, the recommendation in this 

report is to propose the option favoured by the Ecclesall governing bodies to 
create a through primary school on the Ecclesall Infant site. Therefore a further 
4-week consultation on a proposed expansion of age range at Ecclesall Infant 
School would be undertaken prior to a final decision.  All necessary steps are 
being taken to ensure that 30 temporary places are available in September 2016 
as planned.  The Council is committed to ensuring that these children, once 
admitted to Ecclesall Infant, will be able to transfer to a place in Y3 within the 
Ecclesall catchment. 

  
7.16 Under this proposal, Clifford Infant would therefore stay on its Psalter Lane site 

and pupils would be able to continue transferring to Ecclesall CE Junior School 
as is the current position. 

  
7.18 There were also discussions around the proposals for Holt House and 

Carterknowle. In line with the views of local people, it is recommended that 
neither a secondary school building on Holt House, nor the move of Clifford 
away from Psalter Lane, is taken forward. Given the views expressed from Holt 
House and Carterknowle parents and the fact that there is no specific 
requirement for additional places in the Holt House/ Carterknowle catchment 
area, the recommendation is to leave these schools as they are on their current 
sites. 

  
8.0 NEXT STEPS 
  
8.1 If the recommendations are accepted then the following next steps would be 

required in the next phase: 
 

• Proposed new 2-18 school in the northeast: 
i. A rapid process to seek an outstanding sponsor 
ii. Further development of the design leading to planning permission 
iii. Once a sponsor is on board a discussion of catchment areas leading to 

public consultation in Autumn 2016 
iv. Work would also be undertaken with other local post-16 providers to 

ensure a new post-16 provision complements existing provision to ensure 
a great combined local offer. 

v. Ensure sufficient places for local children in northeast area in 2017 
through the existing agreement with the local secondary schools to 
provide sufficient places ahead of the new school opening 

 

• Proposed new 11-18 in the south west: 
i. A rapid process to seek an outstanding sponsor 

Page 20



Page 15 of 19 

ii. Further development of the design leading to planning permission 
iii. Once a sponsor is on board a discussion of catchment areas leading to 

public consultation in Autumn 2016 
 

• Ecclesall Infant: Publish a statutory notice and consult for 4 weeks on the 
proposal to expand and increase the age range prior to a final decision. 
Development of the design leading to planning permission. 
 

• Silverdale: proceed with offering 60 extra places temporarily in advance of 
the new school opening in 2018. Undertake further discussions with the 
school and the secondary sector, including the sponsor of the new school 
once known, about the scheduling of further permanent expansion to meet 
expected long term demand in the south west 

  
8.2 The process of finding the right sponsor for the new schools is an important step 

in meeting the aspirations of the Council and local families. The Council would 
run a rapid process in partnership with the Department for Education to invite 
expressions of interest with the final decision being passed to the Secretary of 
State in line with the statutory process.  The Council will be in a strong position 
to emphasise the key points made by both communities, particularly around 
securing a sponsor that commands the full confidence of local parents from the 
outset. 

  
9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
  

Legal Implications 
9.1 Local Authorities have a duty under section 14 of the Education Act 1996 to 

secure sufficient school places are available for their area. Proposals to 
reorganise maintained school provision to meet this requirement, such as 
expansion and changes to age range, are governed by the procedures set out in 
the Education and Inspections Act 2006, the School Organisation (Prescribed 
Alterations to Maintained Schools) (England) Regulations 2013 (“Prescribed 
Alterations Regulations”), and the School Organisation (Establishment and 
Discontinuance of Schools) Regulations 2013 (“Establishment and 
Discontinuance Regulations”) and relevant statutory guidance. In the case of 
existing Academies, any changes would be negotiated directly between the 
Academy and the Education Funding Agency. The consultation has been carried 
out in accordance with the legislation and the relevant statutory guidance and 
this is detailed in section 5 above. 

  
9.2 In terms of new schools, under the Education and Inspections Act 2006 as 

amended by the Education Act 2011, if the Council thinks that a new school 
needs to be established it must first seek proposals for the establishment of an 
Academy.  The Council would evaluate the proposals and it would then be for 
the Secretary of State to determine which, if any, proposals they determine 
should be implemented by way of entering into Academy arrangements.  

  
Financial Implications 

9.3 The Council receives an annual capital allocation from central government to 
provide school places known as ‘Basic Need’. Sheffield was allocated £17.2m 
for 15/16, £21.4m for 16/17, and £15.7m in 17/18 to meet predicted demand. 

Page 21



Page 16 of 19 

Central Government has also made available additional “Targeted Basic Need 
Funding” to tackle specific priorities, and, funded its own programmes through 
the Education Funding Agency. 

  
9.4 The budget estimate for the schemes proposed in this report is assessed at 

£46m. This is a high level estimate based on the DfE’s average unit costs to 
provide a pupil place. This estimate is in advance of any detailed design, site 
and condition surveys and is not a definitive cost.  Past experience has shown 
that schools which are listed buildings or have been out of use for some time do 
incur considerable expense when renovated. 

  
9.5 It is cost effective to provide additional school capacity in fixed blocks creating 

some underutilisation until all years have come into the education system. Given 
that the places will be provided in advance of take up, the construction work will 
be undertaken ahead of the receipt of the funding from Central Government (the 
Basic Need expansion grant is calculated on the rise in incremental pupil 
numbers each year).  Based on the target budget estimates, and projections of 
other pupil numbers, it is likely that the Council will face a short term funding gap 
over the years 2017-18 to 2019/20 inclusive because of the scale and pace of 
building could outstrip the receipt of grant. This could be between £5m and 
£12m over a period of four years based on the current projections of pupil 
numbers, levels of grant and estimated building costs. The cost of funding this 
borrowing is estimated to be up to £850k over the period 2017-21 based on 
current interest rate projections.  This is an additional pressure on the Revenue 
Budget above the projections in the Council’s current Medium Term Financial 
Strategy and will have to be funded from measures yet to be identified. 
However, given the construction lead times for new pupil places, this is a risk the 
Council must take in advance of receiving future government funding allocations 
beyond the current known values up to the end of 2017/18. 
 

 
  
9.6 The above projections also assume that the Building Condition programme 

spending will be held at the level of DfE Maintenance Grant (currently just over 
£4m p.a.). In previous years spend has averaged £6m - £7m per year and there 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

£000

Year

Schools Programme Funding

Income

Expenditure

Page 22



Page 17 of 19 

is a backlog of maintenance work to complete (estimated at £100m). Given this 
position, containing the spend to £4m may require a reactive rather than 
planned approach to maintenance where plant and infrastructure is replaced as 
it fails. As the plant and infrastructure age, the probability of equipment failure 
increases and priority would be given to heating and electrical plant which are 
critical to keeping buildings open. 

  
9.7 The Council can apply a number of other mitigations to cope with the scenario if 

central government grants do not keep pace with the construction programme.  
These would include bearing down on non-construction costs such as project 
consultancy fees, tighter procurement if market conditions allow, and, seeking 
additional resource from central government. The Council could consider using 
its own limited funds such as the New Homes Bonus.  The Community 
Infrastructure Levy is another possibility as well as other appropriate developer 
contributions for education purposes, but any CIL revenues may be committed 
to other projects until at least 2018/19. More detailed feasibility will be 
undertaken as schemes are developed further. The full impact of this will be 
reported to Cabinet in future reports seeking capital expenditure authorisation. 

  
9.8 A key requirement of central government is that it recognises the long term, front 

loaded nature of school construction and commits to an appropriate funding 
stream. 

  
9.9 The Council’s capital strategy is to fund programmes like Schools using the 

grants made available from central government for that specific purpose. This 
leaves whatever resources the Council can gather from land sales for those 
programmes which receive no central funding but are a priority for Members.  As 
described in paragraph 9.11 below, housing development on the former 
Bannerdale Centre footprint is expected to proceed. Any change to that may 
deprive the Council of a proportion of the anticipated capital receipt.  Capital 
receipts are used to fund capital projects which have no other source of funding 
or support Member priorities. Given that Bannerdale was a prime development 
site, this receipt has been factored into to the long term capital programme. It 
follows therefore that any diminution of this receipt will require some degree of 
prioritisation within the programme with the consequent delay to, or 
postponement of, proposed projects. 

  
Property Implications 

9.10 The commissioning of a new 2-18 school on the former Pye Bank site will 
enable the reuse of a landmark listed building, providing a high quality school 
building and recreational facilities that will contribute to the regeneration of the 
surrounding area.  The topographical challenges of the site and the conversion 
of a listed building will contribute to the cost of the scheme but represent a 
significant investment to the upgrading of facilities for the local community. 
 

9.11 The Council has fully explored the options available for development of a 
secondary school building on the Bannerdale site, including the significant 
response from the consultation on this issue.  The proposed siting on the current 
car park area would enable a well-designed, high quality building to be 
positioned prominently but sympathetically within the site. This would enable the 
identified housing development on the former Bannerdale Centre footprint to 

Page 23



Page 18 of 19 

proceed, subject to further discussion with the Council's preferred residential 
developer, and for the capital receipt from the sale of that site to be realised.  
Liaison with local stakeholders would continue in order to detail the joint access 
and community usage of the green spaces and sports facilities. 

  
Environmental Implications 

9.12 Clearly the environmental impact of developing the buildings and sites would 
need further assessment as designs progress. These will be tested in a more 
formal manner through the related planning permission processes. In each case 
the issues raised during consultation would be used to assist the development of 
plans. This will include an assessment of how issues can be mitigated and 
reduced and whether existing issues in the local neighbourhood could be 
addressed through a new school. An example of this could be providing parking 
for out of hours community use of the green space or access routes, paths or 
drop off points that could potentially be used for the neighbouring primary 
schools at Bannerdale. 

  
10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
10.1 The recommended proposals for the provision of school places have been 

subject to considerable amounts of formative discussion and a formal and 
extended consultation with schools, parents, and the local community. All 
original options and new options coming through the consultation have been 
considered equally through this process. Where new secondary schools have 
been proposed, the alternative option of expanding existing schools has been 
fully considered in every aspect and deemed insufficient, unfeasible, or 
educationally unviable to provide the capacity increase needed across the 
secondary sector in the programme up to, and beyond, 2020. 

  
10.2 The option of doing nothing or delaying delivery of the provision proposed is not 

feasible. It poses significant risks to the Council in not providing sufficient 
statutory school places and to parents in not being able to secure a school place 
for their child. 

  
11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
11.1 The proposals put forward in this report represent the best outcomes when 

balancing the various priorities including: ensuring access to great, inclusive 
schools in every area of the city, getting value for money, protecting green 
spaces, and meeting housing needs. This has been thoroughly tested through 
the consultation and the process of appraising the various options since the 
consultation. 

  
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
12.1 Authorise the Executive Director, Children, Young People and Families in 

consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children's Services and Lifelong 
Learning, and where necessary in consultation with the Executive Director, 
Place to, take all necessary steps, including bringing forward the necessary 
capital approval submissions to Cabinet, to: 
  

Page 24



Page 19 of 19 

i. Commission a new 11-18 school on the car park area of the former 
Bannerdale site as described in this report. 

ii. Support the temporary expansion of Silverdale to provide an additional 60 
secondary school places in 2016/17 and 2017/18 as set out in this report. 

iii. Undertake a 4-week consultation on a proposal to expand Ecclesall Infant 
School to become a through primary school offering 90 places per year 
as set out in this report. 

iv. Commission a new 2-18 school on the former Pye Bank School site as 
described in this report. 

 
 

Alena Prentice 
Head of Access & Pupil Services 
February 2016 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B  

Original Proposals 
 

A new secondary school through the refurbishment and extension of the former Pye Bank 
School building in Burngreave. 
 

To conduct an options appraisal to determine the best way to offer 30 more primary school 
places in the Burngreave area. 
 

A newly-built secondary school co-located with a merged Holt House and Carterknowle 
Primary on the Holt House site. 
 

An expansion of Silverdale Secondary. 
 

A permanent expansion of Ecclesall Infant school. 
 

A merger of Holt House Infant and Carterknowle Junior schools with new or extended 
buildings on a single site. 
 

Creating junior places for the children who attend Clifford Infant by changing the age range 
at Clifford Infant to become a through primary school. 
 

 

Alternative Options 
 

New Council Option –  Use the former Bannerdale Centre site for both the new primary and 
secondary school, possibly a new 3-18 through school. 
 

Build a new secondary on alternative site away from the primary school – eg Bannerdale 
Centre, former Abbeydale Grange or other site. 
 

Put the housing on Holt House Infant site and use the Carterknowle Junior site and the 
Bannerdale footprint for the primary and secondary schools. 
 

Put the housing on Carterknowle Junior site and use the Holt House Infant site and 
Bannerdale footprint for the primary and secondary schools. 
 

Expand the current secondary schools instead of building a new school. 
 

Create the extra places by expanding one of the existing secondary schools, using a site 
such as Bannerdale as a satellite site and operating an upper and lower school. 
 

Find an alternative site for Clifford Infant to become a through primary school, eg Clifford’s 
alternative scheme to remain on Psalter Lane and expand to a through primary by 
purchasing and adapting the house next door. 
 

Build a new primary school elsewhere – on High Storrs/Bents Green or Bannerdale. 
 

Build a new 3 Form Entry primary school at Ecclesall Infants and allow Ecclesall Junior to 
be the junior phase for Clifford. 

 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	6 Call-in of the Cabinet Decision on School Places in Sheffield
	Appendix A Cabinet Report School Places in Sheffield Feb16
	Appendix B Proposals and Options
	School Places Call-In Notice


